ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 31, 2015
3:31 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senator M ke Dunl eavy, Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senat or Cathy G essel

Senat or Berta Gardner

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Senator Gary Stevens
COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO. 79
"An Act relating to reenploynent of persons who retire under the
defined benefit plan of the teachers' retirenment system?"”

- HEARD & HELD

SENATE BILL NO 80

"An Act relating to the duties of the Departnment of Education
and Early Developnent; relating to educational standards and
assessnents; relating to an educat i onal st andar ds and
assessnments review commttee; and providing for an effective
date."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

SENATE BI LL NO. 89

“"An Act relating to a parent's right to direct the education of
a child; and relating to questionnaires admnistered in
school s. "

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 79

SHORT TI TLE: REEMPLOYMENT OF RETI RED TEACHERS & ADM N
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DUNLEAVY

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- March 31, 2015



03/ 18/ 15 (S)

03/ 18/ 15 (S) EDC, CRA

03/ 26/ 15 (S)

03/ 26/ 15 (S) Heard & Hel d
03/ 26/ 15 (S) M NUTE( EDC)
03/ 31/ 15 (S)

W TNESS REG STER

SHEI LA PETERSON, St af f
Senat or Dunl eavy

Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 79 on behal f of the sponsor.

LES MORSE, Deputy Conmi ssioner
Depart ment of Education
Juneau, Al aska

READ THE FI RST TI ME -

REFERRALS

EDC AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

EDC AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 79.

MARY MCMVAHON, Presi dent

Al aska Associ ation of Secondary School Principals

Pal mer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 79.

LI NCOLN SAI TO Chief Operating Oficer
North Sl ope Borough School District
Barrow, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

DR. DEANA PARAMD, Superi nt endent

Mat - Su Bor ough School District

Pal mer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

PETER HOEPHER, Menber

Cordova School Board of Educati on
Cordova, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

JI' M HOLI EN, Superi nt endent

Kl awock School s

Kl awock, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2-

of

of

of

of

SB 79.

SB 79.

SB 79.

SB 79.

March 31,

2015



LI SA PARADY, Executive Director

Al aska Council of School Adm nistrators and

Al aska Superintendents Associ ation

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 79.

DR. PJ FORD- SLACK

I nt eri m Superi nt endent

Hoonah Gty School s

Hoonah, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 79.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:31:26 PM

CHAIR MKE DUNLEAVY <called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:31 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators @G essel, Huggi ns, Gardner and Chair
Dunl eavy.

SB 79- REEMPLOYMENT OF RETI RED TEACHERS & ADM N

3:31: 50 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced the consi deration of SB 79.

SENATOR HUGGE NS noved to adopt the CS for SB 79, |abeled 29-
LS0444\E, as the working docunent.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY obj ected for discussion purposes.
SHEI LA  PETERSON, Staff, Senat or Dunl eavy, Al aska State

Legi slature, presented SB 79 on behalf of the sponsor. She
thanked the Division of Retirenment and Benefits (DRB) for

working with the sponsor on the bill. She said a change
suggested by the Division has been incorporated into the bill
and is found on page 1, lines 7 and 8 in version E. It clarifies

that a nmenber who retired under a defined benefits program or
under the defined contribution programis eligible to be rehired
under this provision. In lines 10-13 it changes the separation
between the retirement and the reenploynent to one year, if you
are less than 62 years old, and three nonths, if you are over
62. This follows the guidelines of the IRS and is recommended by
t he Division.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY renoved his objection. There being no further
obj ection, version E was adopt ed.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- March 31, 2015



SENATOR GARDNER asked to have Section 3 clarified. She inquired
if there is there any additional fiscal inpact to the state or
the school di strict in hiring a retired teacher or
adm ni strator.

M5. PETERSON explained that the Dvision is finalizing the
fiscal note and she doesn't have an exact answer to that
guestion now. The intent is to have the school district be able
to contract with a retired teacher or admnistrator at a |ower
cost than if it were with an active enpl oyee.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY pointed out that the purpose of the bill is to
add a tool for school districts to enlarge their pool of
perspective educators with those who have had a |ot of Alaskan
experi ence.

3:37:28 PM

SENATOR HUGGE NS voi ced concern about teachers who retired under
a retirement incentive. He also did not want to prevent new
teachers from being hired because experienced retirees were
being hired first.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said a new teacher could bring a particular skil
at a particular tine and a retiree could offer other skills at a
| oner cost. The idea for the bill canme fromthe Mentor Project -
for veteran teachers to help new teachers overcone inexperience
and becone effective teachers.

SENATOR HUGGE NS said it is a good idea, but the devil is in the
details. He shared a story about superintendents and the need
for nore good ideas. He said he is skeptical of education
statistics.

3:44:. 34 PM
SENATOR GARDNER was consi dering unintended consequences of the
bill. She wondered if it would unintentionally squeeze the job

mar ket for new teachers.

SENATOR GARDNER opi ned that the idea could be a boon for a smal
comunity, but not for a bigger one.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY conmented that education has a lot of rules, but
he likes to seek the possibilities. He expected feedback from
vari ous groups.

3:47:19 PM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- March 31, 2015



SENATOR G ESSEL asked if there are new teachers being educated
in our systemthat can't get jobs in Al aska.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY replied that sone teachers apply for jobs, but
sonmetines hiring profiles don't fit.

SENATOR G ESSEL was contenplating the concept that old teachers
wer e bunpi ng out new ones.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY opined that that would not happen. The veterans
would be hired when a new teacher wouldn't fit the job
description; it would be a recruiting tool.

3:51:11 PM

SENATOR HUGGE NS said education is an interesting culture. 1In
Mat - Su sone teachers start out substituting or go to a |ess
desirable school in order to get hired. He suggested training
non-traditional professionals to be teachers.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said nore experienced people will know if they
want to go to a rural comunity. He nentioned a grant program
t hat trained people with Bachel or degrees to becone teachers.

3:54: 22 PM

LES MORSE, Deputy Conmm ssi oner, Departnment of  Educati on,
answered questions related to SB 79. He said the grant program
was an alternate route teaching program called AKT-2.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked how many went through the program
MR. MORSE t hought there were 30 to 40 who did.

3:55:10 PM

MARY MCMAHON, President, Al aska Association of Secondary Schoo
Principals, testified in support of SB 79. She said the bil
increases the pool of candidates to get the best teachers
possi bl e. She did not see any concerns about rehiring retirees.

3:57:28 PM

LINCOLN SAITO Chief Operating Oficer, North Slope Borough
School District, testified in support of SB 79. He nmintained
that the bill wll not bunp new teachers out of the system He
stressed that the focus should be on the children - they deserve
the best education possible. He said the district is stil
trying to get the best teachers for their kids while conserving
funds. He concluded that they do not have the selection of
teachers they used to have.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- March 31, 2015



4:00: 52 PM

DR. DEANA  PARAMO, Superi nt endent , Mat - Su  Borough  School
District, testified in support of SB 79. She said their district
has been taking advantages of hiring retirees for part tinme and
tenporary jobs. They provide expertise and needed support during
busy periods. This bill wuld allow for the unrestricted
reenpl oynent of retirees. Mst attractive is the potential
savings for school districts in terns of not having to provide
insurance and retirement benefits. WMt-Su enbraces created
solutions and is encouraged by the benefits found in SB 79.

4:04:52 PM

PETER HOEPHER, Menber, Cordova School Board of Education,
testified in support of SB 79. He related how their
superintendent left in July when no one was available and Rich
Carl son brought calmto the district. He gave an exanple of when
a teacher was hired that didn't work out. He noted that the pool
of applicants has dw ndled over the years. He saw advantages in
SB 79 and agreed that experience hel ps.

4:08:52 PM
JIM HOLIEN, Superintendent, Kl awock Schools, testified in
support of SB 79. He said the idea for the bill cane from a

joint statenent from the Al aska Superintendent Association and
the Al aska Association of School Boards. He said he sees the
bill as a valuable tool for hard-to-fill positions in
adm nistration and in small school s.

He noted that about 300 jobs remain unfilled after the job fair
in Alaska recently. There remains a need for nore teachers,
especially during tinmes of difficult finances. He did not see
that the bill would result in replacing new teachers in jobs.

4:11: 34 PM

LI SA SKI LES- PARADY, Executive Director, Al aska Council of Schoo

Adm nistrators (ACSA) and Al aska Superintendents Association
(ASA), testified in support of SB 79. She provided two handouts,
one of which is a joint position statement by ACSA and ASA
stating support for SB 79. She addressed the issue of teacher
and adm ni strator shortages in Al aska.

She said the second handout deals with the high nunbers of
superintendent turnover in Alaska. She shared data on the
percentages of teacher and admnistrator turnovers. She also
di scussed declining education graduate nunbers and the nunber of

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- March 31, 2015



j obs renmmining open. The nunber of special education teachers
has al so decl i ned.

4:17:20 PM

She pointed out that just over 60 percent of 2014 University of
Al aska teacher graduates were working in Al aska schools in the
fall of 2014. The Departnent of Labor found that 90 percent of
teacher graduates work in Alaska in the year that they graduate.
She said there are mny efforts to increase teacher and
adm ni strator candi dates and support working teachers.

She concluded that retired teachers and administrators are
already in Al aska communities and are famliar with Al aska. She
spoke in strong support of SB 79.

CHAIR DUNLEAVY asked if 300 teaching positions are stil
unfill ed.

M5. SKI LES- PARADY understood that there were 467 jobs currently
posted for contracts going forward.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked for the nunber of current jobs open.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked about a tinme when special education
teachers were renoving that endorsenment fromtheir credentials.

M5. PARADY di scussed the AKT-2 program where teachers who took
an alternative nethod to certification were hired and they were
outstanding. It was an expensive program but hugely successful.

4.22:36 PM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if substitute teachers get preference
poi nts during hiring.

M5. PARADY answered if you are a good substitute and have
experience in the district, you wuld receive favorable
consideration for a full-tine position.

4:24: 01 PM
SENATOR HUGE NS asked for the nane of a nmster teacher

M5. PARADY said they were called "highly qualified."

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if those teachers get any bonus points
when transferring to another district.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- March 31, 2015



M5. PARADY replied that the highly qualified |abel remains with
t he teacher.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked how long probation is for tenure as it
relates to in-district transfers.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said that's a contract negotiation item
M5. PARADY replied it differs by district.

SENATOR HUGE NS comrented on whether those itens had an effect
on teacher hire.

4:26: 26 PM

DR. PJ FORD SLACK, Interim Superintendent, Hoonah City Schools
testified in support of SB 79. Said she just returned from the
job fair in Anchorage where her district was desperately seeking
teachers, including two special education teachers. She noted
the shortage of qualified teachers.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY conmented that politicians sonetimes add on to
what teachers are supposed to do, but do not give themthe tools
t hey need. He said he is very interested in receiving
suggestions from educators and parents about what can be done
differently to nake education a nore inviting profession wth
good student outcones.

4:31: 53 PM
SENATOR HUGA NS said he is looking for the speed bunps in the
good i deas.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY held SB 79 in comm ttee.
4:33: 25 PM
There being no further business to conme before the commttee

Chair Dunl eavy adjourned the Senate Education Standing Conmmttee
at 4:33 p. m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- March 31, 2015



